
 

 
PLAN COMMISSION / ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

AGENDA 
  

Thursday, January 12, 2023                                                                         Frankfort Village Hall        
6:30 P.M.                                                                                               432 W. Nebraska Street (Board Room) 
 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Roll Call 

 
3. Approval of Minutes of December 8, 2022 

 
4. Public Hearing: 21206 S. La Grange Road – Taqueria Mammy Chayo (Ref #104)  

Request:  Special Use Permit for accessory liquor sales in conjunction with an existing restaurant located in 
the B-2 Community Business District, located at 21206 S. La Grange Road, Frankfort, Illinois (PIN: 19-09-
21-407-007-0000).  

 
5. 1.5 Mile Review:  Will County Zoning Case #ZC-22-045 (Uriel Cantero) 

Requests: (1) Map Amendment (rezoning) from A-1 Agricultural District to I-1 Limited Industrial District.  
(2) Special-Use Permit for a truck terminal. (PIN: 18-13-08-100-014-0000) 
 

6. Public Comments 
 
7. Village Board & Committee Updates  

 
8. Other Business 

 
9. Attendance Confirmation (January 26, 2023) 

 
10. Adjournment 
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
All applicants are advised to be present when the meeting is called to order.  Agenda items are generally reviewed in the order 
shown on the agenda, however, the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals reserves the right to amend the agenda and consider 
items in a different order. The Commission may adjourn its meeting to another day prior to consideration of all agenda items.  All 
persons interested in providing public testimony are encouraged to do so.  If you wish to provide public testimony, please come 
forward to the podium and state your name for the record and address your comments and questions to the Chairperson. 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes: 12/8/22 | Page 1 
 

 

MINUTES  

MEETING OF VILLAGE OF FRANKFORT PLAN 
COMMISSION / ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

        December 8, 2022–VILLAGE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING    

 432 W. NEBRASKA STREET 

Call to Order:   Chair Rigoni called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM 

Commissioners Present: Chair Maura Rigoni, Brian James, Nichole Schaeffer, Dan 
Knieriem, Will Markunas, Jessica Jakubowski 

Commissioners Absent: David Hogan 

Staff Present: Director of Community and Economic Development Mike 
Schwarz, Senior Planner Chris Gruba, Planner Drew Duffin 

Elected Officials Present:  None  

A. Approval of the Minutes from November 10th, 2022 

Motion (#1): To approve the minutes from November 10th, 2022. 

Motion by: Knieriem   Seconded by: Schaeffer 

Approved: (5-0, Commissioner Jakubowski Abstained)  

B. Public Hearing: 22793 Citation Road, Unit B – Big Bear Barbell Club 

Drew Duffin presented the staff report. 

Applicant Joe Bell approached the podium.  Chari Rigoni asked the commissioners if 
they had any initial questions; they did not.  Chair Rigoni asked if anyone in the public 
wished to speak; there were none.  

Motion (#2): To close the public hearing. 

Motion by: Schaeffer   Seconded by: Markunas 

Approved: (6-0) 

Commissioner James asked if there would be any outdoor activities, such as flipping 
tractor tires.  Mr. Bell responded that there would not be any outdoor activities. 

 
 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes: 12/8/22 | Page 2 
 

Commissioner Markunas noted that the business model was unique and asked how it was 
devised.  Mr. Bell noted that he had been a fireman for 18 years and that the profession 
now requires more paramedic work and less firefighting.  As such, the physical demands 
of the job have changed somewhat.  Commissioner Markunas asked if patrons would be 
by appointment only.  Mr. Bell replied that they would be by appointment only through 
an app.  The app would allow local fire departments to attend remote training sessions  
from their fire station gym or in-person at the gym on the subject property.  He noted that 
the groups are usually small, about 4-5 people at a time.  Commissioner Markunas asked 
if there would always be an employee on-site.  Mr. Bell replied that there would be an 
employee on-site most of the time but not all of the time.  An employee would usually be 
present between 5 am – 10 am.  

Mr. Bell noted that he would be able to control the number of people that access the 
building through the phone app, granting the access code to a certain number of people at 
one time. Chair Rigoni asked if the maximum number of persons on site would be limited 
to 10 people.  Mr. Bell responded yes and that this figure includes employees.  

Chair Rigoni read an amended motion for the proposed Special Use Permit.  

Motion (#3): Recommend the Village Board approve a Special Use Permit for Indoor 
Recreation for a strength and conditioning fitness facility located at 22793 Citation Road, 
Unit B, in accordance with the submitted plans, public testimony and Findings of Fact, 
with the condition that no more than ten people shall be on the premises at one time.  

Motion by: Markunas   Seconded by: James 

Approved: (6-0) 

Motion (#4): Recommend the Village Board approve a Special Use Permit for Extended 
Hours of Operation allowing the strength and conditioning fitness facility to open for 
business at 4 am for a business located at 22793 Citation Road, Unit B, in accordance 
with the submitted plans, public testimony and Findings of Fact.   

Motion by: Jakubowski   Seconded by: Markunas 

Approved: (6-0) 

C. Public Hearing: 20815 S. La Grange Road – Tiny Tots Play Café  

Drew Duffin presented the staff report. 

Business partners of the applicant Caitlin Caprio and Anthony Caprio approached the 
podium.  They noted that they changed their proposed location from 9500 W. Lincoln 
Highway to 20815 S. La Grange because it would be easier for motorists to enter and exit 
the site and because more parking would be available at the new location.  



Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes: 12/8/22 | Page 3 
 

Chair Rigoni asked the applicants if there were any changes to the proposal since the 
previous public hearing on October 27th.  The representatives stated that there were no 
changes.  

Commissioner Markunas and Chair Rigoni noted that the proposed location on La 
Grange Road was much better than at the formerly proposed site.  Chair Rigoni expressed 
hope that their business would attract other complementary uses to the plaza.  

Motion (#5): To close the public hearing. 

Motion by: James   Seconded by: Schaeffer 

Approved: (6-0) 

Motion (#6): Recommend the Village Board approve a Special Use Permit for Indoor 
Recreation for an indoor children’s play facility located at 20815 S. La Grange Road, in 
accordance with the submitted plans, public testimony and Findings of Fact.  

Motion by: Knieriem   Seconded by: Schaeffer 

Approved: (6-0) 

D. East Point Park Preliminary and Final Plat of Resubdivision – 22413 and 22445 W. 
Fey Drive 

Drew Duffin presented the staff report.  

Chair Rigoni asked applicant Jeff Graefen if he had anything to add.  He responded that 
he did not.  Chair Rigoni asked the commissioners if they had any questions or 
comments.  They responded that they did not.  

Motion (#7): Recommend the Village Board approve the Plat of Resubdivision for 
Graefen’s East Point Park 1st Resubdivision, which is a consolidation of Lots 14 and 15 
in the East Point Park Subdivision, subject to any necessary technical revisions prior to 
recording.  

Motion by: Knieriem   Seconded by: Jakubowski 

Approved: (6-0) 

E. Public Comments 

There were none.  

F. Village Board & Committee Updates 

Mike Schwarz noted that the Village Board approved (5-0) an amendment to the 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use map for the parcel on Laraway Road adjacent to 



Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals Minutes: 12/8/22 | Page 4 
 

Hickory Creek Middle School, from commercial to residential.  The Board also approved 
(5-0) a Preliminary Development Plan for Misty Creek Townhomes.  This project will 
return to the Plan Commission for final approval at a later date.  

Commissioner Knieriem asked for a status update regarding the restaurant proposed for 
the former Simply Smokin’ site.  Schwarz noted that the applicant is working on 
revisions and nothing new has been submitted to staff.  

Commissioner Schaeffer asked for a status update regarding the Opa! restaurant patio 
enclosure request.  Schwarz noted that the applicant voluntarily requested that the item be 
tabled until the spring.   

G. Other Business – Proposed Text Amendment for Parking Regulations  

Chris Gruba elaborated on the memo provided in the packet. Staff is seeking 
authorization from the Committee-of-the-Whole for a text amendment to the parking 
regulations within the Zoning Ordinance.   

Chair Rigoni noted that it would be helpful if staff provides a comparison of the proposed 
parking requirements against the current requirements. It would also be helpful if staff 
could provide some “real life” examples in Frankfort and explain how the parking 
requirements would change for a specific commercial plaza.  Chair Rigoni also asked 
staff to investigate the parking required for grocery stores and to consider parking 
requirements for a multi-story self-storage facility.   

Attendance Confirmation (December 22nd, 2022) 

Chair Rigoni noted that December 22nd would likely be cancelled due to lack of agenda 
items.  

Motion (#8): Adjournment 7:18 P.M. 

Unanimously approved by voice vote. 

Approved January 12, 2023 

As Presented_____ As Amended_____ 

_____________________/s/ Maura Rigoni, Chair 

_____________________/s/ Secretary 



1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                           January 12th, 2023 

 
Project: Taqueria Mammy Chayo 
Meeting Type:  Public Hearing  
Requests: Special Use Permit for Accessory Liquor Sales  
 in conjunction with a permitted restaurant  
Location: 21206 S. La Grange Road 
Applicant:  Teresa Castro 
Prop. Owner:  Frankfort Crossings, LLC  
Representative: Same as applicant  
Report By:  Drew Duffin, Planner 
 

Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 13.06 acres                                                                           Figure 1: Location Map  
PIN(s): 19-09-21-407-007-0000  
Annexation: Ord. No. 479 
Existing Zoning:  B-2, with a Special Use for a PUD (Frankfort 

Crossings) 
Prop.  Zoning: B-2, Community Business PUD with a Special 

Use for Accessory Liquor Sales 
Building(s) / Lot(s): 3 buildings / 1 lot 
  
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject 
Property 

Retail Plaza General Commercial B2 PUD 

North Automobile Sales 
 

General Commercial B2 PUD 

South Residential, Commercial, 
Office 

Mixed Use, Single-
Family Attached 

Residential 

R4 PUD, 
H1 PUD, 

B4 
East Commercial, Office General Commercial, 

Mixed Use 
B2 PUD, 
B4, H1 

 
West 

 
Detention Pond 

Detention and 
Retention Pond/Env. 

Conservation 

 
B2 PUD 

  

Project Summary  
 

The applicant, Teresa Castro, is requesting a Special Use Permit for Accessory Liquor Sales for the existing restaurant 
located at 21206 S. La Grange Road. This business is part of the larger Frankfort Crossings PUD, which was originally 
approved in 1990.  

Attachments 
1. 2022 Aerial Photograph from Will County GIS 
2. ALTA Survey, received 3.29.22 
3. Findings of Fact received 1.4.23 

 

Analysis 
 

 



2 

In consideration of the request, staff offers the following points of discussion: 
 

• The subject property is Lot 6 in the Frankfort Crossings Subdivision, a commercial Planned Unit 
Development, which was subdivided and recorded in 1992.  
 

• Lot 6 is a 13.06-acre lot which contains the Jewel-Osco Grocery Store, the Ace Hardware Store, and 
numerous other smaller commercial tenant spaces in an in-line retail center.  
 

• The subject tenant space is 21206 S. La Grange Road, and adjacent businesses include Bar’s Nails to the 
south and The UPS Store to the north.  

 
• The applicant’s business currently operates as a permitted use at the address listed above. They are 

seeking to expand their menu offerings to include alcoholic beverages, and are not proposing to extend 
their hours of operation (11:00 AM to 10:00 PM). 
 

• The applicant is requesting a Class E-2 liquor license, which allows for the sale of beer and margaritas only. 
In addition, carry-out liquor sales are prohibited under this class of liquor license. While regular bars are 
prohibited, services bars are permitted. Per Chapter 113.02 of the Code of Ordinances, a service bar is a 
bar where a prepared drink is received by an employee of an establishment before being given to a 
customer. A typical bar allows a customer to receive a prepared drink directly from an employee working 
at the bar.  
 

 

Standards for Special Uses  
 

For reference during the workshop, Article 3, Section B, Part 6 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists 
“findings” or “standards” that the Plan Commission must use to evaluate every special use request.  
 
The Plan Commission shall make written findings of fact and shall refer to any exhibits containing plans and 
specifications for the proposed special use, which shall remain a part of the permanent record of the Plan 
Commission. The Plan Commission shall submit same, together with its recommendation to the Village Board for 
final action. No special use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission, unless such Commission shall find:  
 

a. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or endanger, 
the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare.  

 
b. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within 
the neighborhood.  
 

c. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.  
 

d. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 
variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the neighborhood.  
 

e. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided.  
 

f. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to 
minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.  
 



3 

g. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in 
which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village Board, 
pursuant to the recommendations of the Plan Commission.  
 

Affirmative Motion  
 
For the Commission’s consideration, staff is providing the following proposed affirmative motion.  

1. Recommend the Village Board approve a Special Use Permit for Accessory Liquor Sales in conjunction with 
an existing permitted restaurant located at 21206 S. La Grange Road, in accordance with the submitted 
plans, public testimony, and findings of fact. 

 



Notes

Aerial Photo - 21206 S. La Grange

Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic Information System has been produced and processed 
from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This 
disclaimer applies to both isolated and aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, express or 
implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement 
of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be periodically made to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you 
have obtained information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data can be altered subsequent to original distribution. Data 
can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any 
questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

Miles0.1

Legend

1: 4,514WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere
0 0.07

Roadways

Federal

State

County

Local and Private

Parcels

Townships

aduffin
Highlight



mschwarz
Received

aduffin
Highlight



 
 

Application for Plan Commission / Zoning Board of Appeals Review 
Special Use Permit Findings of Fact 

 
Article 3, Section E, Part 6 of the Village of Frankfort Zoning Ordinance lists “findings” or “standards” that 
the Plan Commission must use to evaluate every special use permit request. The Plan Commission must 
make the following seven findings based upon the evidence provided. To assist the Plan Commission in 
their review of the special use permit request(s), please provide responses to the following “Findings of 
Fact.” Please attach additional pages as necessary.  
 
1. That the establishment, maintenance or operation of the special use will not be detrimental to, or 

endanger, the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare. 
 
 
 
 
 
2. That the special use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 

immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair 
property values within the neighborhood. 

 
 
 
 
 
3. That the establishment of the special use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 

improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district. 
  
 
 
 
 
4. That the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so at 

variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures already 
constructed, or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the character of the 
applicable district, as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values within the 
neighborhood. 

 
 
 
 
 

aduffin
Received



5. That the adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and/or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided. 

 
 
 
 
 
6. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so 

designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets. 
 

 

 

 

7. That the special use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district 
in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the Village 
Board, pursuant to the recommendations of the Plan Commission. 

 
 



1 

                                          

Planning Commission / ZBA                                                                                                                             January 12, 2023 

 
Project: Will County Case ZC-22-045 (M-22-018, S-22-027) 
Meeting Type:  1.5-Mile Extraterritorial Review  
Requests: Map Amendment from Will County A-1 to Will County I-1; Special-Use Permit for a truck 

terminal 
Purpose:         To operate a truck terminal on the property 
Location: East side of La Grange Road, approximately 820 feet south of Stuenkel Road 
Applicant:  Uriel Cantero 
Prop. Owner:  Uriel Cantero 
Consultants:   DesignTek Engineering, Inc.  
Representative: Joseph Padula-Zamora    
Report By:  Michael J. Schwarz, AICP 
 

Site Details 
 

Lot Size: 10.10 acres                                                                       Figure 1: Location Map  
PIN(s): 18-13-08-100-014-0000  
Annexation: Not applicable 
Existing Zoning:  Will County A-1 Agricultural District 
Prop.  Zoning: Will County I-1 Limited Industrial District 
Building(s) / Lot(s): 0 buildings / 1 lot 
Adjacent Land Use Summary:  
 

 Land Use Comp. Plan Zoning 

Subject 
Property 

Agriculture          Agriculture Will 
County 

A-1 
North  Agriculture 

 
        Environmental  
          Conservation 

Will 
County 

A-1 
South  Light Industrial       Will 

County 
    I-1 

East Utility Corridor/ 
Agriculture 

Utility ROW/ 
Agriculture  

Will 
County 

A-1 
West Agriculture Agriculture Will 

County 
A-1 

 
Project Summary  
 
The applicant, Joseph “Jose” Padula-Zamora represents Uriel Cantero, the owner of the 10.10-acre unincorporated 
property located on the east side of La Grange Road, approximately 820 feet south of Stuenkel Road (PIN 18-13-08-
100-014-0000). 
 
The subject property is currently zoned A-1 Agricultural District in Will County.  The applicant has filed an application 
with Will County to rezone the property from A-1 Agricultural District to 1-1 Limited Industrial District.  The applicant 
has also filed an application with Will County requesting a Special Use Permit for a truck terminal.  The applicant 
desires to construct a 20-space truck/trailer parking lot on the property.  No building is proposed.  A stormwater 
management facility is depicted on the attached Preliminary Concept Site Plan. 
 



2 

As the subject property is located within the Village's 1.5-mile extraterritorial jurisdiction (approximately 3,821 feet, 
and four tax parcels away from the Village’s municipal boundary), the Village may comment on the proposed Map 
Amendment and Special Use.  The discussions and recommendations of the Commission will be forwarded to Will 
County for consideration. 
 
Attachments 

1. 2020 Aerial Photograph from Will County GIS  
2. 2020 Aerial Photograph from Will County GIS (close-up)  
3. Site Photograph from Google Street View 
4. Will County Application 
5. Plat of Survey 
6. Preliminary Concept Site Plan 
7. Your Frankfort / Your Future 2040 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map (Excerpt) 
8. Section 155-7.30 (Use Table) of the Will County Zoning Ordinance 

 
Analysis 
 

In consideration of the requests, staff offers the following points of discussion: 
 

• The proposed Industrial zoning classification is inconsistent with the Village of Frankfort's 2040 
Comprehensive Plan which identifies the subject property and the surrounding properties for future 
agricultural use; 
 

• The proposed I-1 Industrial zoning classification would allow more intense use of the property by right. 
Table 155-7.30 (Use Table) of the Will County Zoning Ordinance identifying permitted and special uses in 
the A-1 and I-1 Districts are attached for your consideration (refer to highlighted column headings).  
Examples of uses permitted in the Will County I-1 District include auto salvage (indoor), manufacturing uses, 
recycling facilities, and warehousing; 
 

• The proposed Special-Use Permit for a truck terminal would allow trucks to be parking on the site.  Per the 
attached Site Plan, no building is proposed. 
 

• Per the Will County Geographic Information System (GIS), the western area of the property contains a 
mapped flood hazard area and small wetland area. 

 
AFFIRMATIVE MOTION(S) 
 
Recommend the Village Board object/ not object to the proposed Special-Use Permit for a truck terminal for the 
unincorporated property located on the east side of La Grange Road, approximately 820 feet south of Stuenkel Road 
(PIN 18-13-08-100-014-0000). 
 
Recommend the Village Board object/ not object to the proposed rezoning from A-l to I-1 for the unincorporated 
property located on the east side of La Grange Road, approximately 820 feet south of Stuenkel Road (PIN 18-13-08-
100-014-0000). 
 
 
 

 
 



Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic 
Information System has been produced and processed from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made 
regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This disclaimer applies to both isolated and 
aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, 
express or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from 
contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be periodically made 
to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you have obtained 
information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data can be altered 
subsequent to original distribution. Data can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents 
of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any 
questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

Notes

Legend

0.57

1: 18,056

0 Miles

Will County Case ZC-22-045  (PIN
18-13-08-100-014-0000)

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Projection

1/5/2023 Date:

0.28

Roadways

Federal

State

County

Local and Private

Parcels

Surrounding Counties

Townships

Flood Hazard Area

1% Annual Chance Flood Hazard

Regulatory Floodway

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard

Area of Minimal Flood Hazard

Area with Reduced Risk Due to Levee

Wetlands

Lacustrine

Palustrine

Riverine

Upland

Municipalities

City of Aurora

Village of Beecher

Village of Bolingbrook

Village of Braceville

City of Braidwood

Village of Channahon

Village of Coal City

City of Crest Hill

Village of Crete

Village of Diamond

Village of Elwood

Village of Frankfort

Village of Godley

Village of Homer Glen

City of Joliet

Village of Lemont

City of Lockport

Village of Manhattan

Village of Minooka

Village of Mokena

Village of Monee

City of Naperville

Village of New Lenox

Village of Orland Park

Village of Park Forest



Disclaimer of Warranties and Accuracy of Data: Although the data developed by Will County for its maps, websites, and Geographic 
Information System has been produced and processed from sources believed to be reliable, no warranty, expressed or implied, is made 
regarding accuracy, adequacy, completeness, legality, reliability or usefulness of any information. This disclaimer applies to both isolated and 
aggregate uses of the information. The County and elected officials provide this information on an "as is" basis. All warranties of any kind, 
express or implied, including but not limited to the implied warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, freedom from 
contamination by computer viruses or hackers and non-infringement of proprietary rights are disclaimed. Changes may be periodically made 
to the information herein; these changes may or may not be incorporated in any new version of the publication. If you have obtained 
information from any of the County web pages from a source other than the County pages, be aware that electronic data can be altered 
subsequent to original distribution. Data can also quickly become out of date. It is recommended that careful attention be paid to the contents 
of any data, and that the originator of the data or information be contacted with any questions regarding appropriate use. Please direct any 
questions or issues via email to gis@willcountyillinois.com.

Notes

Legend

0.14

1: 4,514

0 Miles

Will County Case ZC-22-045 (PIN PIN
18-13-08-100-014-0000)

WGS_1984_Web_Mercator_Auxiliary_Sphere

Projection

1/5/2023 Date:

0.07

Address Points

Roadways

Federal

State

County

Local and Private

Parcels

Townships

Flood Hazard Area

1% Annual Chance Flood Hazard

Regulatory Floodway

0.2% Annual Chance Flood Hazard

Area of Minimal Flood Hazard

Area with Reduced Risk Due to Levee

Wetlands

Lacustrine

Palustrine

Riverine

Upland



Site Photo – PIN 18-13-08-100-014-0000 

 

Figure 1: View of subject property looking east from Route 45/La Grange Road.  24145 S. La Grange Road (Sunset Sewer and 
Water building) visible at right.  

 













USE CATEGORY ZONING DISTRICTS

Use Subcategory

A
-1

A
-2

E
-1

E
-2

R
-1

R
-2

R
-2

A

R
-3

R
-4

R
-5

R
-6

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
-4

C
-5

C
-6

I-
1

I-
2

I-
3

S
P

-P
O Standards

LSpecific Use Type

P = use permitted as of right P S = use allowed with special use approval P - = use not allowed

RESIDENTIAL

Household Living

LDetached House P P P P P P P P P P P - - - - - - - - - -

• Accessory dwelling unit, attached P P P P S S S S S S - - - - - - - - - - - 155-10.10(C)

• Accessory dwelling unit, detached P P P P S S S S S - - - - - - - - - - - - 155-10.10(C)

LDetached House on Existing Residential
Leasehold Parcel

P P P P P P P P P P P - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.160

LTownhouse - - - - - - - - - P P - - - - - - - - - -

LMobile Home P - - - - - - - P P P - - - - - S - - - - 155-9.170

LMobile Home on Existing Residential Leasehold
Parcel

P P P P P P P P P P P - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.160

LMobile Home Park - - - - - - - - S S S - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.170

LMulti-unit Building - - - - - - - - - - S - - - - - - - - - -

LAbove-ground-floor dwelling unit in vertical
mixed-use building

- - - - - - - - - - - P P P S - - - - - -

Elder Cottage Housing Opportunity (ECHO) S S S S S S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.110

Group Living (except as identified below) - - - - - - - - - - S - S S - - - - - - -

LEmergency or Temporary Shelter - S S S S S S S S S S - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.90

LFraternities, Dormitories and Boarding Houses - - - - - - - - - - - - S - - - - - - - -

LGroup Care Home (maximum 6 residents) P P P P P P P P P P P - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.90

LGroup Care Home (7-16 residents) - S S S S S S S S S S - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.90

LHalfway House - S S S S S S S S S S - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.90

mschwarz
Highlight

mschwarz
Highlight



USE CATEGORY ZONING DISTRICTS

Use Subcategory

A
-1

A
-2

E
-1

E
-2

R
-1

R
-2

R
-2

A

R
-3

R
-4

R
-5

R
-6

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
-4

C
-5

C
-6

I-
1

I-
2

I-
3

S
P

-P
O Standards

LSpecific Use Type

P = use permitted as of right P S = use allowed with special use approval P - = use not allowed

RESIDENTIAL

LNursing Home - - - - - - - - - - - - S S - - - - - - -

LOrphanage - S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

LConvent, Monastery or Similar Group Religious
Living Quarters

- S S S S S S S S S S - - - - - - - - - -

PUBLIC AND CIVIC

Airport-related Facilities - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P P

College or University - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P P - - - - -

Day Care (except as identified below) - - - - - - - - - - - P P P P P - - - - P 155-9.100

LAdult or Child Day Care Home P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P - - - - 155-9.100

Detention and Correctional Facilities - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S S -

Fraternal, Labor, Membership Organization - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P - - S - - -

Hospital - - - - - - - - - - - - S S S S - - - - -

Library/Cultural Exhibits - - - - - - - - - - - P P P P P - - - - P

Park/Recreation/Open Space (except as identified
below)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - P

LCemetery P P P P P P P P P P P - - - - - P - - - -

LCommunity Center P P P P P P P P P P P - - - - - P - - - P

LGolf Course/Country Club - - S S S S S S S S S - - - - - P - - - P

LForest Preserve P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

LPark P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P - - - P

LPlayground P P P P P P P P P P P - - - - - P - - - P

mschwarz
Highlight

mschwarz
Highlight



USE CATEGORY ZONING DISTRICTS

Use Subcategory

A
-1

A
-2

E
-1

E
-2

R
-1

R
-2

R
-2

A

R
-3

R
-4

R
-5

R
-6

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
-4

C
-5

C
-6

I-
1

I-
2

I-
3

S
P

-P
O Standards

LSpecific Use Type

P = use permitted as of right P S = use allowed with special use approval P - = use not allowed

PUBLIC AND CIVIC

LSwimming Pool P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P - - - P

Religious Assembly S S P P P P P P P P P P P P P - - S - - -

Safety Service P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

School P P P P P P P P P P P - - - - - - - - - -

Utilities and Services

LMinor, Basic P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

LMajor (except as identified below) S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S P P -

LSolar Farms S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S S - 155-9.245

LWholesale Power Generators S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S S - 155-9.250

LWind Farm Facilities S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.260

Wireless Telecommunications Facilities P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 155-9.270

COMMERCIAL

Adult Entertainment Facility - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S - 155-9.10

Animal Service

LAnimal Sales/Grooming S S S S - - - - - - - - P P P - - P P P -

LAnimal Care/Boarding S S S S - - - - - - - - P P P - - P P P - 155-9.20

LVeterinary Clinic, Animal Hospital S S S S - - - - - - - - P P P - - P P P - 155-9.20

LStable (accessory use) P P P P S S - - - - - - - - - - P - - - - 155-10.10(B)
(2)

LStable (principal use) P - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

mschwarz
Highlight

mschwarz
Highlight



USE CATEGORY ZONING DISTRICTS

Use Subcategory

A
-1

A
-2

E
-1

E
-2

R
-1

R
-2

R
-2

A

R
-3

R
-4

R
-5

R
-6

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
-4

C
-5

C
-6

I-
1

I-
2

I-
3

S
P

-P
O Standards

LSpecific Use Type

P = use permitted as of right P S = use allowed with special use approval P - = use not allowed

COMMERCIAL

Artist Work or Sales Space - - - - - - - - - - - P P P P - - P P P -

Building Maintenance Service (except as identified
below)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - P P - - - P P -

LLandscaping and Lawn Maintenance Business S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P -

Building Supplies and Equipment - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P - - P P P -

Business Support Services - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P - - P P P -

Communication Service Establishment - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P -

Construction Sales and Services S - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - P P P -

LConstruction Offices/and Equipment/ Materials
Storage (Temporary)

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 155-9.60

Eating and Drinking Establishment (except as
identified below)

- - - - - - - - - - - P P P P - P P - - P

LDrive-In Restaurants - - - - - - - - - - - - S P P - P - - - -

mschwarz
Highlight

mschwarz
Highlight



USE CATEGORY ZONING DISTRICTS

Use Subcategory

A
-1

A
-2

E
-1

E
-2

R
-1

R
-2

R
-2

A

R
-3

R
-4

R
-5

R
-6

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
-4

C
-5

C
-6

I-
1

I-
2

I-
3

S
P

-P
O Standards

LSpecific Use Type

P = use permitted as of right P S = use allowed with special use approval P - = use not allowed

COMMERCIAL

LBars, Taverns, Cocktail Lounges, Ancillary
Liquor Service

- - - - - - - - - - - S S S S - P - - - -

LAncillary Liquor Service in conjunction with
allowed agritourism uses

S S

Entertainment and Spectator Sports

LIndoor, Minor P S - - - - - - - - - - P P P - P - - - - 155-9.120

LIndoor, Major S - - - - - - - - - - - - S S - P - - - - 155-9.120

LOutdoor, Minor P - - - - - - - - - - - - S S - P - - - - 155-9.120

LOutdoor, Major S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - - 155-9.120

Financial Services (except as identified below) - - - - - - - - - - - P P P P P - P P P -

LWith Drive-through Facilities - - - - - - - - - - - S S P P P - P P P -

LCurrency Exchange - - - - - - - - - - - P P P P - - P P P -

LPawn Shop, Check Cashing and Short-Term Loan
Establishment

- - - - - - - - - - - - - P P - - P P P -

Food and Beverage Retail Sales (except as identified
below)

- - - - - - - - - - - P P P P - - - - - -

LLiquor Stores (Package Sales) - - - - - - - - - - - S S S S - - - - - -

Funeral and Interment Services - - - - - - - - - - - P P P P - - - - - -

Lodging

LBed and Breakfast S S S S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.30

LHotel/Motel - - - - - - - - - - - - S S P - S - - - -

mschwarz
Highlight

mschwarz
Highlight



USE CATEGORY ZONING DISTRICTS

Use Subcategory

A
-1

A
-2

E
-1

E
-2

R
-1

R
-2

R
-2

A

R
-3

R
-4

R
-5

R
-6

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
-4

C
-5

C
-6

I-
1

I-
2

I-
3

S
P

-P
O Standards

LSpecific Use Type

P = use permitted as of right P S = use allowed with special use approval P - = use not allowed

COMMERCIAL

LRetreat S S S S - - - - - - - - - - - - S - - - -

LRecreational Vehicle Park/RV Campground S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S - - - -

Office, Administrative, Professional or Consumer
Service

- - - - - - - - - - - P P P P P - P P P P

Office or Clinic, Medical - - - - - - - - - - - P P P P P - P P P -

Parking, Non-Accessory - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P - - P P P -

Personal Improvement Service (except as identified
below)

- - - - - - - - - - - P P P P - - - - - -

LBarber/Salon - - - - - - - - - - - P P P P - - P S S -

Repair or Laundry Service, Consumer - - - - - - - - - - - P P P P - - P S S -

Research Services (except as identified below) - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P - P P P -

Residential Convenience/Support Establishment - - - - - - - - - - P - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.230

Retail Sales and Service (except as identified below) - - - - - - - - - - - P P P P - - - - - P

LFarm/Agricultural Supply Sales P S - - - - - - - - - P P P P - - P P P -

LFirearms Dealer S S S S S S S S S S S S S P P - - P P - - 155-9.80

LSeed Sales P - - - - - - - - - - P P P P - - P P P -

Sports and Recreation Participant (except as
identified below)

- - - - - - - - - - - S P P P - P S - - -

LCommercial Fishing Pond S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

LDay Camps - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

LFair Grounds - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

mschwarz
Highlight

mschwarz
Highlight



USE CATEGORY ZONING DISTRICTS

Use Subcategory

A
-1

A
-2

E
-1

E
-2

R
-1

R
-2

R
-2

A

R
-3

R
-4

R
-5

R
-6

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
-4

C
-5

C
-6

I-
1

I-
2

I-
3

S
P

-P
O Standards

LSpecific Use Type

P = use permitted as of right P S = use allowed with special use approval P - = use not allowed

COMMERCIAL

LGo-Cart and Motorbike Tracks - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

LHunting Preserves and/or Clubs S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

LIce Skating Rinks - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

LMarina - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

LMiniature Golf Courses - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

LPractice Golf Driving Ranges - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

LPrivate Recreational Clubs S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

LShooting Range, Indoor S - - - - - - - - - - - - P P - P P P - -

LShooting Range, Outdoor S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S - - - -

LSki Slope - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

LVideo Arcade - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

LWater Park/Aquatic Amusement - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - -

Vehicle and Equipment Sales and Service

LMinor Motor Vehicle Fueling Station (may
include convenience retail sales)

- - - - - - - - - - - S S P P - - P P P - 155-8.40(Y)

LMajor Motor Vehicle Fueling Station - Planned
Unit Development

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - S - - S S S - 155-8.40(Y)

LTravel Plaza - Planned Unit Development - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S - - - S S - 155-8.40(Y)

LCar Wash/Cleaning Service - - - - - - - - - - - - S S S - - P P P -

LHeavy Equipment Sales/Rental (except as
identified below)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - P P - - S P P -

mschwarz
Highlight

mschwarz
Highlight



USE CATEGORY ZONING DISTRICTS

Use Subcategory

A
-1

A
-2

E
-1

E
-2

R
-1

R
-2

R
-2

A

R
-3

R
-4

R
-5

R
-6

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
-4

C
-5

C
-6

I-
1

I-
2

I-
3

S
P

-P
O Standards

LSpecific Use Type

P = use permitted as of right P S = use allowed with special use approval P - = use not allowed

COMMERCIAL

LAgricultural Implement Sales and Service S S - - - - - - - - - - - P P - - P P P -

LLight Equipment Sales/Rental - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P - - S P P -

LMotor Vehicle Repair - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P - - P P P -

LVehicle Storage and Towing - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P - - P P P -

INDUSTRIAL -

Auto Salvage (except as identified below) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S - 155-9.140

LAuto Salvage (completely enclosed building) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P -

Accessory Dwelling Unit for Security - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S S - 155-10.10(C)

LAuto Rebuilder (completely enclosed building) P P P P P

LAuto Rebuilder (with outdoor storage) S

Manufacturing and Industrial Services, Artisan - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P - P P P -

Manufacturing and Industrial Services, Limited
(except as identified below)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P -

LBottling Works - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - - - P P P -

LCraft Brewing and Distilling - - - - - - - - - - - - S S S - - P P P - 155-9.280

LMerchandise and Product Display Space (No
Direct Sales)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - P P P -

LElectronics Industries - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P - P P P -

LWineries (no retail sales or tastings) P P P P P - - P P P 155-9.280

LWineries (with retail sales or tastings) S S S S S P P P 155-9.280

USE CATEGORY ZONING DISTRICTS

mschwarz
Highlight

mschwarz
Highlight



Use Subcategory

A
-1

A
-2

E
-1

E
-2

R
-1

R
-2

R
-2

A

R
-3

R
-4

R
-5

R
-6

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
-4

C
-5

C
-6

I-
1

I-
2

I-
3

S
P

-P
O Standards

LSpecific Use Type

P = use permitted as of right P S = use allowed with special use approval P - = use not allowed

INDUSTRIAL -

Manufacturing and Industrial Services, General
(except as identified below)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S P P -

LAnimal Feed Preparation, Grinding, Mixing and
Storage

S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P -

Manufacturing and Industrial Services, Intensive
(except as identified below)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S -

LFertilizer Mixing, Sales and Storage S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S -

LAnhydrous Ammonia Sales and Storage S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S -

Mining/Quarrying S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S - 155-9.180

Recycling Facilities

LConcrete and Asphalt Recycling Facilities - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S - 155-9.210(A)

LGeneral Construction or Demolition Debris
Recycling Facilities

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S - 155-9.210(B)

LRecyclable Material Drop-off Facilities, Indoor - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P - 155-9.210(C)

LRecyclable Material Drop-off Facilities, Outdoor - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S S - 155-9.210(C)

LRecyclable Material Processing Facilities, Indoor - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P - 155-9.210(D)

LRecyclable Material Processing Facilities,
Outdoor

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S S - 155-9.210(D)

LSoil Storage, Recycling and Reuse - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S - 155-9.210(E)

Self-Service Storage Facility - - - - - - - - - - - - S S S - - S S S - 155-9.240

Warehousing, Wholesaling and Freight Movement
(except as identified below)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P -

USE CATEGORY ZONING DISTRICTS

mschwarz
Highlight

mschwarz
Highlight



Use Subcategory

A
-1

A
-2

E
-1

E
-2

R
-1

R
-2

R
-2

A

R
-3

R
-4

R
-5

R
-6

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
-4

C
-5

C
-6

I-
1

I-
2

I-
3

S
P

-P
O Standards

LSpecific Use Type

P = use permitted as of right P S = use allowed with special use approval P - = use not allowed

INDUSTRIAL -

LBeverage Warehouse/Distribution - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P -

LParcel (Package) Delivery Service - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P - - P P P -

LCargo Container Storage and Maintenance
Facilities (on- or off-chassis)

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S - 155-9.40

LGrain Storage S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P -

LIntermodal Terminal - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S - 155-9.130

LStorage Warehouse/Wholesaling, Indoor - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P -

LStorage Yard, Outdoor S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S P - 155-14.100
(B)

LTruck or Bus Terminal - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S P -

Waste-related Use (except as identified below) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

LClean Construction or Demolition Debris Fill
Operations

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S - 155-9.70 (A)

LLandscape Waste Composting S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.150

LLandscape Waste, Land Application of P - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.150

LLandscape Waste Processing/Transfer Facility - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S -

LPollution Control Facilities - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S S -

LUncontaminated Soil Fill Operations - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S - 155-9.70 (A)

AGRICULTURAL -

Agriculture

LCrop Farming P P - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

USE CATEGORY ZONING DISTRICTS

mschwarz
Highlight

mschwarz
Highlight



Use Subcategory

A
-1

A
-2

E
-1

E
-2

R
-1

R
-2

R
-2

A

R
-3

R
-4

R
-5

R
-6

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
-4

C
-5

C
-6

I-
1

I-
2

I-
3

S
P

-P
O Standards

LSpecific Use Type

P = use permitted as of right P S = use allowed with special use approval P - = use not allowed

AGRICULTURAL -

LAll Other P - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Agritourism (except as identified below) P S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

LRural Events S S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Community Garden P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P 155-9.50

Horticulture, Nurseries and Greenhouses (except as
identified below)

- - S S - - - - - - - - - P P - - P P P P

LHorticulture P P S S - - - - - - - - - P P - - P P P P

LNursery, Wholesale P P S S - - - - - - - - - P P - - P P P P

LGreenhouse, Wholesale P P S S - - - - - - - - - P P - - P P P -

OTHER

Aircraft Landing Strip or Pad, Private S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P -

Exotic Animal Breeding & Training S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Exotic Animal Rehabilitation Facility; Indigenous; less
than 22 lbs./10 kg

S S S S - - - - - - - - S S S - - S S S - 155-9.25

Exotic Animal Rehabilitation Facility; Indigenous; 22 
lbs./10 kg. or larger

S S S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S S S - 155-9.25

Exotic Animal Rehabilitation Facility; Non-Native S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.25

Exotic Animal Sanctuary; Indigenous or Non-Native S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 155-9.25

Exotic Animal Zoological Park S - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - S - - - - 155-9.25

Medical Cannabis Cultivation Center P - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P P -

Medical Cannabis Dispensing Organization S - - - - - - - - - - S S S S - - S S S -

Adult-Use Cannabis Dispensary S S S S S S S S - 155-9.300

Adult-Use Cannabis Craft Grower P P P P P P P P - 155-9.300

mschwarz
Highlight

mschwarz
Highlight



Adult-Use Cannabis Cultivation Center P P P P P P P P - 155-9.300

Adult-Use Cannabis Infuser S S S S S S S S - 155-9.300

Adult-Use Cannabis Processor S S S S S S S S - 155-9.300

On-premise dynamic display in agricultural and
residential zoning districts

S S S S S S S S S S S - - - - - - - - - -

USE CATEGORY ZONING DISTRICTS

Use Subcategory

A
-1

A
-2

E
-1

E
-2

R
-1

R
-2

R
-2

A

R
-3

R
-4

R
-5

R
-6

C
-1

C
-2

C
-3

C
-4

C
-5

C
-6

I-
1

I-
2

I-
3

S
P

-P
O Standards

LSpecific Use Type

P = use permitted as of right P S = use allowed with special use approval P - = use not allowed

OTHER

Radio/TV Tower - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P P -

Railroad Passenger Stations - S - - - - - - - - - - S S S S - - P P -

Railroad Yard - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - P -

(Am. Ord. 14-44, passed 3-20-2014; Am. Ord. 14-231, passed 9-18-2014; Am. Ord. 15-39, passed 2-19-2015; Am. Ord. 16-258, passed 9-15-2016; Am. Ord. 16-227, passed
12-15-2016; Ord. 18-1, passed 1-18-2018; Ord. 18-193, passed 7-19-2018; Ord. 18-221, passed 8-16-2018; Ord. 18-222, passed 8-16-2018; Ord. 18-240, passed 9-20-2018; Ord. 19-
237, passed 9-19-2019; Ord. 19-352, passed 12-19-2019; Ord. 20-478, passed 12-17-2020; Ord. 20-266, passed 8-20-2020; Ord. 21-233, passed 7-15-2021)

mschwarz
Highlight

mschwarz
Highlight






	Text1: No everything will be the same . We will keep the public health and safety and morals and comfort and general welfare as we been doing in for the past 2 years.
	Text2: No it will not affect the property value or the neighborhood in any matter .
	Text3: No it will not impede on the property or any developments of the property and in the surroundings 
	Text4: We not planning to do anything in the structure.
	Text5: We had provided all the information and we have all adequate utilities in our business.
	Text6: The adequate measures will be taken and all business will be made inside our property and there's parking spaces available.
	Text7: Yes we can get recommendations and we can modified ask requested.


